


 

1 
Planning Commission Special Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2020 
U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2020\COMMITTEES and BOARDS\PLANNING COMMISSION_500 pm_2nd Tues\09 15 2020 Special Meeting\09 15 2020 PC 20‐10 Subdivision 
Replat_Roger.ConnieSell.docx 

 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 

PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, September 15, 2020 at 5:00 pm 

PC	20‐10	–	SUBDIVISION	OF	PLAT	

PRESENT 
Commission Members  Tim Barry‐Chairman, Jason Maassel, Marvin Barlow, Larry Vocke 
City Staff  Kevin Schultheis‐Code Enforcement/Zoning Administrator   
Clerk of Council  Roxanne Dietrich 
Others       
ABSENT 
Commission Member  Suzette Gerken     

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Barry called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 5:00 pm with a roll call noting a 
quorum was present. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Hearing no objections or corrections, the minutes from the July 27, 2020 Special Planning Commission 
meeting were approved as presented. 
 
PC 20‐10 BACKGROUND 
Barry read the background on PC 20‐10: 
An application for a Public Hearing has been filed by Roger and Connie Sell, 570 Cambridge St. 
Napoleon, Ohio. The applicant is requesting approval of a subdivision of plat within the city. The request 
is pursuant to Chapter 1141 of the Codified Ordinances of Napoleon, Ohio. The property is located in a 
C‐1 General Commercial Zoning District. 
 
RESEARCH AND FINDINGS 
Schultheis presented his research and findings. 
The location is a proposed replat of Lot A, Appian Way Condominiums of the Replat of Lots 4, 5 and 6, 
L.G. Randall’s 1st Addition, City of Napoleon, located at 444 Appian and 448 Appian.  The Replat of Lot A 
is requested by Roger and Connie Sell.  The reason for the replat is, there is a condominium association 
fee that is being charged to the owner and that had to be resolved and dissolved with a filing by their 
attorney before we could proceed with the subdivision plat.  They are now asking to proceed so they 
can sell these lots off as single lots for homeowners or homebuilders.  The planned development is 
located in a C1‐General Commercial Zoning District.  The scope of the project is there are two lots, Lots 3 
and 4, to be subdivided off of the condominium property.   
 
DISCUSSION 
Barry asked Lots 1 and 2 are condo lots?  Schultheis replied yes.  Barry continued then there are lots 3 
and 4 that used to be part of that and now they will not be.  What is the second Lot 3 up at the top?  
Schultheis said Lot 3 is more of a Fruchey location, is that lot still available?  Mr. Sell said that is Keith 
Fruchey’s.  Barry said that is a different property all together.  All the setbacks are good with plenty of 
room to do what they want to do?  Schultheis said there is enough property acreage for a residential 
house to be put in there. Maassel clarified you can put residential lots in a C1?  Schultheis said yes, they 
just have different percentages of property usage. 
 



 

2 
Planning Commission Special Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2020 
U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2020\COMMITTEES and BOARDS\PLANNING COMMISSION_500 pm_2nd Tues\09 15 2020 Special Meeting\09 15 2020 PC 20‐10 Subdivision 
Replat_Roger.ConnieSell.docx 

 

Motion:  Vocke  Second:  Maassel 
to approve PC 20‐10, Replat of Lot A, Appian Way Condominiums Replat of Lots 4, 5 and 6, L.G. Randall’s 
1st Addition 
 
Roll call vote on the above motion: 
Yea‐Maassel, Vocke, Barry, Barlow 
Nay‐ 
Yea‐4, Nay‐0. Motion Passed. 
 

The meeting continued with the consideration of PC 20‐11 
 
 
Approved 
 

 

October 13, 2020           
  Tim Barry ‐ Chair   
 



 

1 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2020 
U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2020\COMMITTEES and BOARDS\PLANNING COMMISSION_500 pm_2nd Tues\09 15 2020 Special Meeting\09 15 2020 PC 20‐11_Street Dedication_Clairmont 
Avenue Section.docx 

 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 

PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, September 15, 2020 at 5:00 pm 

PC	20‐11	–	STREET	DEDICATION	–	SECTION	OF	CLAIRMONT	AVENUE	

PRESENT 
Commission Members  Tim Barry‐Chairman, Jason Maassel, Marvin Barlow, Larry Vocke 
City Staff  Kevin Schultheis‐Code Enforcement/Zoning Administrator   
Clerk of Council  Roxanne Dietrich 
Others         
ABSENT 
Commission Member  Suzette Gerken     

 
PC 20‐11 BACKGROUND 
Barry read the background for PC 20‐11: 
An application for a Public Hearing has been filed by Napoleon Area City School District.  The school 
wishes to dedicate a section of Clairmont Avenue, located between the blocks of Briarheath Avenue and 
Westmoreland Avenue, in the City of Napoleon, Ohio.  This is Pursuant to the City Code Section 1105.13. 
 
PC 20‐11 RESEARCH AND FINDINGS 
Schultheis read the research and findings:  An application for a public hearing has been filed by the 
Napoleon School District who wishes to dedicate the section of Clairmont Avenue located between the 
blocks of Briarheath Avenue and Westmoreland Avenue. The right‐of‐way is part of the southwest 
quarter of the Section 14, Town 5 North, Range 6 East, Henry County, City of Napoleon, Ohio in 
Lynnewood Addition.  The Napoleon School Board finished the paving and drainage system last week.  
Approval will allow the development of Goodville Development Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 on the north side of 
the street. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Maassel asked if our engineer has looked at this and agrees with the dedication?  Schultheis answered 
yes, it has been approved.  Vocke clarified dedicate means turning the property over to the city.  
Schultheis said yes.  Barlow asked if the school did all the improvements?  Schultheis replied yes, they 
had the paving done and drains and curbs put in.  Maassel explained that was one portion of an 
agreement between the city and the schools as part of the Safe Routes to Schools.  The parking 
agreement for the baseball fields and this was part of that agreement. 
 
Motion:  Barlow      Second:  Vocke 
to approve PC 20‐11, dedication of a section of Clairmont Avenue between Briarheath Avenue and 
Westmoreland Avenue 
 
Roll call vote on the above motion: 
Yea‐Maassel, Vocke, Barry, Barlow 
Nay‐ 
Yea‐4, Nay‐0.  Motion Passed. 
 

The Planning Commission meeting continued with consideration of PC 20‐12 
 
 



 

2 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2020 
U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2020\COMMITTEES and BOARDS\PLANNING COMMISSION_500 pm_2nd Tues\09 15 2020 Special Meeting\09 15 2020 PC 20‐11_Street Dedication_Clairmont 
Avenue Section.docx 

 

 
Approved 
 

 

October 13, 2020           
  Tim Barry ‐ Chair   
 



 

1 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2020 
U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2020\COMMITTEES and BOARDS\PLANNING COMMISSION_500 pm_2nd Tues\09 15 2020 Special Meeting\09 15 2020 PC 20‐12_Subdivision Replat.Luzny.docx 

 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 

PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, September 15, 2020 at 5:00 pm 

PC	20‐12	–	SUBDIVISION	REPLAT	–	LOT	A‐1	OF	HOGREFE’S	PLAT	II	

PRESENT 
Commission Members  Tim Barry‐Chairman, Jason Maassel, Marvin Barlow, Larry Vocke 
City Staff  Kevin Schultheis‐Code Enforcement/Zoning Administrator   
Clerk of Council  Roxanne Dietrich 
Others       
ABSENT 
Commission Member  Suzette Gerken   

 
PC 20‐12 BACKGROUND 
Barry read the background for PC 20‐12: 
An application for a Public Hearing has been filed by Richard Luzny. The applicant is requesting approval 
of a subdivision of a Re‐Plat of Lot A of Hogrefe’s Plat II within the city. The request is pursuant to 
Chapter 1141 of the Codified Ordinances of Napoleon, Ohio. The property is located in an R‐3 Moderate‐
Density Residential Zoning District. 
 
PC 20‐12 RESEARCH AND FINDINGS 
Schultheis made an amendment to the statement, it should be Lot A‐1 of Hogrefe’s Plat II.   The property 
is located in a R‐3 Moderate Density Residential Zoning District.  The scope of the proposed project is to 
replat Lot A‐1 to .849 acres on Lot A‐1‐1 and Lot A‐1‐2 at .887 acres.  He is subdividing two parcels of a 
lot off separately.   
 
DISCUSSION 
Barry noted he has three lots the larger section he is dividing into two smaller lots.  To clarify, these 
meet our requirements to put a house on and have enough setbacks from the side and there will be no 
issues with the utilities.  Schultheis said all the square footage requirements for putting a house on are 
okay. 

Motion:  Maassel    Second:  Vocke 
to approve PC 20‐12, re‐plat of Lot A‐1 of Hogrefe’s Plat II  

Roll call vote on the above motion: 
Yea‐Maassel, Vocke, Barry, Barlow 
Nay‐ 
Yea‐4, Nay‐0.  Motion Passed. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion:  Vocke  Second:  Barlow 
to adjourn the Special Planning Commission meeting at 5:11 pm 

Roll call vote on the above motion: 
Yea‐Maassel, Vocke, Barry, Barlow 
Nay‐ 
Yea‐4, Nay‐0.  Motion Passed. 
 
   



 

2 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2020 
U:\~ My Files\‐ RECORDS CLERK\2020\COMMITTEES and BOARDS\PLANNING COMMISSION_500 pm_2nd Tues\09 15 2020 Special Meeting\09 15 2020 PC 20‐12_Subdivision Replat.Luzny.docx 

 

 
 
Approved 
 
October 13, 2020           
  Tim Barry ‐ Chair   
 


















	10 13 2020 Planning Comm Agenda
	09 15 2020 Minutes  PC20-10 Subdiv Replat Roger Sell
	Minutes PC 20-11 Clairmont Avenue Dedication
	Minutes PC 20-12 Subdivision Replat.Luzny
	PC 20-13 Cond. Use Permit 600 Block Trail Drive

